
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

20 July 2020

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Policy and Organisation Board
DATE: 28 July 2020
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Virtual meeting 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

Paul Grant 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor ( Councillor Huggins)
Councillor Hook (Chairman)

Councillor Bateman
Councillor Burgess
Councillor Carter
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Foster-Reed
Councillor Herridge

Councillor Herridge
Councillor Hylands
Councillor Jessop
Councillor Murphy
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Philpott
Councillor Raffaelli 

Public Document Pack



NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Policy and Organisation Board
28 July 2020

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 16 
MARCH 2020 AND 10 JUNE 2020 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

6.  EXTERNAL AUDIT 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN UPDATE 

The Audit Plan Update sets out our updated assessment of the key 
risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and 
outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks. Our 
assessment has been updated in light of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
which has occurred since our 2019/20 Audit Plan was presented to 
the 12 February meeting of the Standards & Governance Committee 
and cross-referred from there to the 16 March meeting of the Policy & 
Organisation Board.

7.  PROPOSED WAR MEMORIAL AT STOKES BAY 

To seek Member approval to locate a new War Memorial in Stokes 
Bay to coincide with the 75th Anniversary of the end of World War 2 
and recognise the important role the area played in the war effort.

8.  EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT IT EQUIPMENT/HOUSING PODS 

Report to follow

9.  CONTRACT EXTENSION 

To seek Board approval to utilise the optional extension provision 
in the   CCTV Monitoring Contract for the period of one year.

10.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



This page is intentionally left blank



Policy and Organisation Board
16 March 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
WAS HELD ON 16 MARCH 2020

Councillors Bateman, Burgess, Carter, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Foster-Reed, Herridge, Hook, 
Hylands, Jessop, Pepper and Philpott

50. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillor Murphy.

51. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Hylands declared a pecuniary interest in the late item on National and Non 
Domestic Rates. 

52. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 4 FEBRUARY 2020 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held 4th February 2020 be signed as a true and 
correct record. 

53. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

54. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

55. CROSS REFERENCE FROM STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Consideration was given to a cross reference from the Standards and Governance 
Commiteee held on Wednesday 12 February 2020 that the Audit Planning Report 2019/20 
be recommended to the Policy and Organisation Board as those charged with governance.

RESOLVED: That the Audit Planning Report 2019/20 be noted. 

56. MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT AWARD OF CONTRACT 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of IT requesting the award of a contract 
exceeding the EU Threshold in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules 
(CPRs) Part 4 – Schedule 13 Para 15.4.

The Board was advised that the current cloud migration was being undertaken through 
Phoenix Software and that once this was complete it would be possible to look at 
alternatives the next time the contact was scheduled for renewal.

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Policy and Organisation Board
16 March 2020

2

RESOLVED: That the board award a contract under the Central Buyers Consortium (CBC) 
Framework Lot 1 – Software, using a Direct Award to Phoenix Software an Awarded 
Supplier, for the supply of the Council’s Microsoft Enterprise Agreement (EA) with a 
combined cost of £193.378.98 over 3 years.  

57. LEASEHOLD BUILDING INSURANCE 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Housing seeking the Council’s 
permission to waive the requirement within contract procedure rules (CPR) to obtain three 
quotes to procure a new building insurance for leasehold propertie seeking the Council’s 
permission to waive the requirement within contract procedure rules (CPR) to obtain three 
quotes to procure a new building insurance for seek the Council’s permission to waive the 
requirement within contract procedure rules (CPR) to obtain three quotes to procure a new 
building insurance for leasehold properties in housing owned stock.

RESOLVED: That the Board supports the action to waive contract procedure rules in this 
instance to allow the Council to extend the existing leasehold building insurance with Zurich 
Municipal for a further 12 months from 01 April 2020 for the reasons set out in this report.

58. PARTNERSHIP FOR SOUTH HAMPSHIRE 

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Executive requesting that consideration be 
given to a proposed revised governance agreement from PfSH to deal with the recent 
change of name, as well as a slightly amended geography and other administrative 
arrangements, which the Council needs to enter into to confirm its approval to the 
amendments. 

The Borough Solicitor updated the Board and advised that in relation to the financial 
commitments, in real terms the previous cost was over £10000 and that the Board were 
advised that this had reduced and that the Council were being asked to contribute to other 
initiatives.  

Resolved: That the Board agrees to the amendments to the PfSH governance agreement 
as set out in this report.

59. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

The Board was advised that there were two late reports for consideration. 

60. INVESTMENT IN SOLAR POWER 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Finance outlining a proposal for the 
Council to install solar panels and battery to the Gosport Leisure Centre.

By reason of special circumstances, the Chairman determined that the following item be 
considered at this meeting notwithstanding the fact that the item had not been available for 
public inspection in accordance with the provisions of Section 100B(4)(a) of the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985.



Policy and Organisation Board
16 March 2020

3

Members welcomed the proposal, and felt that the Council should look to be identifying 
other buildings to place such panels. 

RESOLVED: That the Board approve:

 The installation of solar panels and a battery at the Gosport Leisure Centre;

 The associated capital scheme to be added to the Capital Programme in the sum of 
£302,000 and financed from Prudential Borrowing on the basis that the savings to the 
Council can more than offset the borrowing costs; and

 Officers to work with the Portsmouth City Council (PCC) Energy team to design and tender 
the works and the Borough Solicitor in consultation with the Borough Treasurer be given 
delegated authority to amend, as required, the legal arrangements with the Leisure Centre 
operator, Places for People.

61. CHANGES TO BUSINESS RATE RELIEFS, DISCOUNTS AND GRANTS 

Councillor Hylands declared a pecuniary interest, left the room and took no part in the 
discussion and voting thereon. 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Local Taxation requesting that the 
Board consider the proposed changes to the Council’s Discretionary Rate Relief Policy 
relating to Retail Discount, Public House Relief and grants to Small Business Rate Relief 
ratepayers.

By reason of special circumstances, the Chairman determined that the following item be 
considered at this meeting notwithstanding the fact that the item had not been available for 
public inspection in accordance with the provisions of Section 100B(4)(a) of the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985.

Members welcomed the proposal, and recognised that it was good news for the hospitality 
and the leisure industry. 

Members questioned the eligibility of the proposal and hoped that it would help as many 
people as possible and also sought reassurance that the funds would be repaid. 

RESOLVED: The Board approves amendments to the above schemes to grant 100% rate 
relief in respect of Retail Discount and to increase the amount available for Public House 
Relief up to £5000 for the financial year 2020/21.

The Board delegates to the Head of Local Taxation in consultation with the Section 151 
Officer the power to adjust the existing policies for Retail Discount and Public House Relief 
in line with the government guidance when it has been issued and to implement the small 
business grant when the government has provided more details.

CHAIRMAN



Policy and Organisation Board
16 March 2020

4

Concluded at 6.11 pm



Policy and Organisation Board
10 June 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
WAS HELD ON 10 JUNE 2020

The Mayor 

Councillors  Ms Ballard, Bateman, Burgess, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Foster-Reed, Herridge, 
Hook, Mrs Hook, Hylands, Jessop, Murphy, Philpott, Mrs Prickett and Raffaelli

1. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

There were none.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Jessop declared a pecuniary interest in the Discretionary Grant Policy and left 
the meeting and took no further part in the discussion or voting thereon. 

3. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

5. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020-21 

This item was considered at the Council meeting prior to this meeting taking place. 

6. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

The Board was advised that there were two reports for considerations. 

Both reports are late due to circumstances resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic: 
 Government rules have been introduced regarding discretionary payments that have 

required emergency implementation by the Council
 A support package for the Gosport Ferry Company due to the pandemic has only 

recently been agreed by Gosport Borough Council with Portsmouth City Council and 
Hampshire County Council, which requires an urgent decision regarding hardship 
relief

The papers could have been dealt with by using the urgency powers of the Chief Executive, 
but as a meeting of Members was imminent it was decided that this was preferable to the 
decisions being taken by Officers.

REDUCTION/REMISSION OF BUSINESS RATES ON THE GROUNDS OF HARDSHIP 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Local Taxation requesting that 
consideration be given to an application for hardship relief from non-domestic rates under 



Policy and Organisation Board
10 June 2020

2

Section 49 of the Local Government Finance Act submitted by Gosport Ferry  Ltd, Landing 
Stage, The Hard.

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the £30,000 was being 
funded by central government funds. 

The Council had made it clear to the ferry company that there were to be no dividend 
payments to the shareholders. 

Members noted that the staff had taken a 20% pay cut in these difficult times. 

Members welcomed a joint approach to the support being provided to the ferry company to 
keep the essential services. 

Members recognised that the ferry was a crucial service to the residents of Gosport, and 
welcomed the support being offered to the ferry. It was recognised that the ferry company 
needed to acknowledge the support provided moving forward. 

Members expressed disappointment that the ferry had not been afforded the same support 
in the crisis that other methods of transports such as buses had. 

RESOLVED: That the Policy at Appendix A of the report be approved and that delegation 
be given to the Head of Finance and the Head of taxation for the immediate implementation 
of the policy.

DISCRETIONARY GRANT PAYMENTS 

Councillor Jessop left the room and took no part in the discussion and voting 
thereon. 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Finance requesting that consideration 
be given to approving the Discretionary Rate Grant Policy.

The Board was advised that the Group Leaders had considered the proposal prior to the 
meeting and had the Leader of the Liberal Democrats had proposed that an amendment be 
made to page 3 of the policy as follows. 

 have a business premises based in the Borough.  This includes a B&B based in part 
of the applicant’s main residence. The criteria to qualify for this is: the owner must 
live there, and accommodation and breakfast (with appropriate Food Safety 
qualification) be provided for six or fewer guests. These B&Bs will be assessed on 
the percentage of their overheads which relate to the B&B aspect).

Other businesses which are operated solely from domestic premises are also eligible 
for this scheme.

Councillor Chegwyn advised that he occasionally worked from home but would not apply for 
any grant. 



Policy and Organisation Board
10 June 2020

3

He welcomed the inclusion of the amendment as there were many people that worked from 
home that missed out on being eligible for other grants and welcome all those in the 
community as much as possible. 

Members welcomed the support for the extended community and the Chairman of the 
Board advised that there was pressure being put on the Government to ensure that any 
remaining funds in the small business grant fund to support the wider community. This was 
welcomed by Members

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that childminders would be 
considered eligible for the policy.

Councillor Murphy also advised that he occasionally worked from home and would not be 
claiming the funding. 

He reiterated the importance of supporting as many people as possible. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board were advised the those had not applied for 
small business grants were continuing to be encouraged to do so and that there had not yet 
been an answer from the Government about the retention of any surplus funds, but that 
there was pressure to the MP to push for this. Additionally a cut-off date for applications 
had not been confirmed. The Board was advised that they would be advised of any change 
to this. 

The Borough Treasurer advised that thought there was no guidance on timing of decisions, 
the Government had advised that if it was possible to prove that there was an 
oversubscription of the fund by businesses in need then the underspend would be 
considered for retention by the Government. It was important therefore that the records of 
businesses requiring support was detailed.

The Board unanimously agreed that the amended recommendation be agreed. 

RESOVED: 

That the Board approves the Policy at Appendix A including the amendment at page 3  and 
delegates immediate implementation of the Policy to the Head of Finance and Head of 
Taxation.

 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 20:50



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board Meeting

Date of Meeting: 28 July 2020
Title: External Audit - 2019-20 Audit Plan Update
Author: Kevin Suter
Status: Policy & Organisation Board to consider and note 

the 2019-20 Audit Plan Update

Purpose

The Audit Plan Update sets out our updated assessment of the key risks 
driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our 
planned audit strategy in response to those risks. Our assessment has been 
updated in light of the Covid-19 pandemic, which has occurred since our 
2019/20 Audit Plan was presented to the 12 February meeting of the 
Standards & Governance Committee and cross-referred from there to the 16 
March meeting of the Policy & Organisation Board.

Recommendation

 Review the 2019/20 Audit Plan Update and note the update to the 
risks and areas of focus we have identified, and our planned 
response to them. 

1 Background

1.1 The National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice requires us to 
communicate details of the audit opinion and value for money 
conclusion risks that we have identified to those charged with 
governance. This report provides an update to the risk 
assessment set out in our 2019/20 Audit Plan presented in 
February. 

Agenda Item 6



2

2 Report

2.1

3

3.1

4

4.1

Updated risk assessment

The Audit Plan Update sets out how we have updated our risk 
assessment in light of the Covid-19 pandemic, which has 
occurred since our 2019/20 Audit Plan was issued. It also 
confirms the procedures we will undertake to address the 
updated risks.

Risk Assessment

The NAO requires auditors to communicate details of the risks 
that we have identified in relation to the audit opinion and value 
for money conclusion to those charged with governance. This 
report should be reviewed as part of the Council’s governance 
arrangements. 

Conclusion

The 2019/20 Audit Plan Update is attached for consideration by 
the Policy and Organisation Board as those charged with 
governance.

Financial Services comments: The report has been shared with the 
Borough Treasurer for comment before 
being submitted into papers.

Legal Services comments: N/A
Crime and Disorder: N/A
Equality and Diversity: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

N/A

Corporate Plan: N/A
Risk Assessment: See point 3 above.
Background papers: N/A
Enclosures: 2019-20 Audit Plan Update

Report author/ Lead Officer: Kevin Suter, Associate Partner, Ernst & 
Young



Gosport Borough
Council
Audit planning report
update
Year ended 31 March 2020
July 2020



2

Members of the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board 13 July 2020

Dear Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board Members

Audit Planning Report update – Year ended 31 March 2020

This report seeks to provide the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board with an update to our risk identification for
the 2019/20 audit, reflecting the changes in risks identified in the current year.

In our audit planning report presented to the 12 February Standards & Governance Committee, we provided you with an overview of our audit
scope and approach for the audit of the financial statements. Following the coronavirus outbreak (Covid-19) in March 2020, we have re-assessed
our audit scope and strategy.  We provide here an update to the significant accounting and auditing matters, and audit approach outlined in the
Audit Planning Report.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 28 July 2020 as well as understand whether there are other matters which you
consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Gosport Borough Council
Town Hall, High Street
Gosport
Hampshire PO12 1EB



3

Audit risks01 01



4

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk
of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition is most
likely to occur through the
inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure. This
would have the impact of
reducing revenue expenditure
and increasing additions to
Property, Plant and Equipment.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In
the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council,
which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We have assessed the risk is most likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure,
as there is an incentive to reduce expenditure which is funded from Council Tax. This could then result in funding
of that expenditure, that should properly be defined as revenue, through inappropriate sources such as capital
receipts, capital grants, or borrowing

Update – Covid-19

No change to the risk from Covid-19 in 2019/20 and no change to planned procedures.

Inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure

We have set out the significant risks identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach. The risks identified
below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.



5

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)

Financial statement impact

The fair value of investment
properties at in the draft
accounts at 31 March 2020 is
£6.4m.

What is the risk?

The fair value of Investment Properties represents a significant balance in the Council’s accounts and is subject to
valuation changes, impairment reviews and market fluctuations. Management is required to make material
judgements and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

Update – Covid-19 related constraints on property valuation

The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, has
issued guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to
conclude that there is a material uncertainty in the valuations at year-end.

Since late March 2020 in the UK, Covid-19 has had a dramatic impact on the occupation of buildings due to the
forced closure of restaurants, retail stores, leisure, offices and hotels due to government regulation. We do not
know how long the government’s measures will last or how long businesses will be impacted. Rental income is
expected to fall as tenants may default on their rents or seek to negotiate rent reductions as they can no longer
trade effectively. This could have a significant impact on investment properties and we have therefore raised a
significant risk in relation to investment property valuations.

Our procedures to address this risk are set out on the following page.

Valuation of Investment
Properties

We have set out the significant risks identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach. The risks identified
below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.



6

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What will we do?We will:

• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional
capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation and challenge the key assumptions used by the valuer;
• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

Additional Covid-19 procedures in response to our risk include:
• Ensure that appropriate disclosure has been made in the financial statements concerning the material uncertainty, including in Note 4

‘Uncertainties relating to Assumptions and Estimates used’; and
• Obtain input from EY Real Estates, our internal specialists on asset valuations for Investment Properties, including inputs on market

sentiment and how it has been reflected in the ERVs/yields.



7

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represents a
significant balance in the Council’s accounts and is subject to
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Management is required to make material judgements and apply
estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded
in the balance sheet. The value of PPE at 31 March 2020 is
£188m.

Update – Covid-19 related constraints on property valuation

The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body
setting the standards for property valuations, has issued guidance
to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on
markets might cause a valuer to conclude that there is a material
uncertainty in the valuations at year-end.

This impact is expected to affect PPE valued at Existing Use Value
(EUV) as the valuation basis for these properties is linked to recent
market transactions.

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the

adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional
capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing
their valuation and challenge the key assumptions used by the valuer;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been
valued within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for
PPE.

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the
remaining asset base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent
valuation;

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial
statements.

Additional Covid-19 procedures in response to our risk include:
• Consider the Council’s asset base by type of asset and valuation

methodology, as impacts are likely to be more significant for assets
valued on the basis of data from market transactions;

• Ensure the appropriate disclosure has been made in the accounts
concerning the material uncertainty, including in Note 4 ‘Uncertainties
relating to Assumptions and Estimates used’; and

• If required, obtain input from EY Real Estates, our internal specialists on
asset valuations for PPE, including inputs on market sentiment and how
it has been reflected in valuations which are based on EUV and fair value.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.



8

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the area of focus? What will we do?

Going Concern

Covid-19 has created a number of financial pressures throughout Local
Government, increasing service demand and expenditure. The Council has incurred
additional expenditure in a number of areas of its operations and has experienced
income losses in parking, commercial and leisure services. The extent of support
from MHCLG has developed over time, but does not include all financial
consequences of Covid-19.

There have been a number of media stories in both the national press and trade
publications raising the possibilities of an increase in Chief Financial Officers using
their s114 powers.  This could be under s114(3), insufficient resources to fund
likely expenditure.

CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2019/20 sets out that organisations that can only be discontinued under statutory
prescription shall prepare their accounts on a going concern basis.

However, International Auditing Standard 570 Going Concern, as applied by
Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United
Kingdom, still requires auditors to undertake sufficient and appropriate audit
procedures to consider whether there is a material uncertainty on going concern
that requires reporting by management within the financial statements, and within
the auditor’s report. We are obliged to report on such matters within the section of
our audit report ‘Conclusions relating to Going Concern’.

To do this, the auditor must review management’s assessment of the going
concern basis applying IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements.

The auditor’s report in respect of going concern covers a 12-month period from
the date of the report, therefore the Council’s assessment will also need to cover
this period.

In light of the unprecedented nature of Covid-19, its impact
on the funding of public sector entities and uncertainty over
the form and extent of government support, we will be
seeking a documented and detailed consideration to support
management’s assertion regarding the use of the going
concern basis of preparation, and particularly with a view
whether there are any material uncertainties for disclosure.

We will review your updated going concern disclosures
within the financial statements under IAS1, and associated
financial viability disclosures within the Narrative
Statement. We expect you to disclose any material
uncertainties that do exist.

These disclosures should also include the process that has
been undertaken for revising financial plans and cashflow,
liquidity forecasts, known outcomes, sensitivities, mitigating
actions including but not restricted to the use of reserves,
and key assumptions (e.g. assumed duration of Covid-19).

Our audit procedures to review these will include
consideration of:

• The current and developing environment;

• Liquidity (operational and funding);

• Mitigating factors;

• Management information and forecasting; and

• Sensitivities and stress testing.



9

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the area of focus? What will we do?

New accounting standard – IFRS 16

In our Audit Planning Report issued in January we identified an
inherent risk in relation to the implementation of the new
accounting standard IFRS 16 (Leases) . Due to the impact Covid-
19, the adoption this standard was deferred to 2021/22.

• Since IFRS 16 (Leases) has not yet been adopted by the Code, the
Council no longer needs to disclose the financial impact of this new
accounting standard in the 19/20 accounts. We therefore no longer
consider this to be an areas of audit focus.

Other areas of audit focus

Pension Liability Valuation

In our Audit Planning Report issued in January we identified an inherent risk in relation to the Pension Liability Valuation. There is no impact
on this risk as set out in our Audit Plan as a result of Covid-19.



10

Scope of our audit

Additional Procedures
Audit Process overview

Additional audit procedures as a result of Covid-19

Other changes in the entity and regulatory environment as a result of Covid-19 that have not resulted in an additional risk, but result in the following impacts
on our audit strategy are as follows:

• Information Produced by the Entity (IPE): There is an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by the
entity due to the likely inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the Council’s systems. We will:

• Use the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE we’re auditing as far as possible; and

• Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

• Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports.

The changes to audit risks and audit approach will change the level of work we perform. This may impact the audit fee. We will agree changes to the audit fee
with management and report back to the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board in our Audit Results Report.



11

Scope of our audit

Materiality

Materiality

We have considered the materiality levels we reported to you in our Audit Planning Report, and whether any change to our materiality is required in light of
Covid-19. Following this consideration we remain satisfied that the basis and percentages for planning materiality, performance materiality and the threshold
for reporting audit differences set out in our Audit Planning Report remain appropriate.
We have updated the values based on the draft 2019/20 financial statements.
• Our planning materiality at year-end, based on 2% of gross revenue expenditure, is £1,231k.
• This results in an updated performance materiality, at 75% of overall materiality, of £923k, and
• Our updated threshold for reporting misstatements is £61.5k.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: Policy & Organisation Board
Date of Meeting: 28 July 2020
Title: Proposed War Memorial, Stokes Bay
Author: Michelle Lees, HAZ Programme Manager
Status: For Decision

PURPOSE

To seek Member approval to locate a new War Memorial in Stokes 
Bay to coincide with the 75th Anniversary of the end of World War 2 
and recognise the important role the area played in the war effort.

RECOMMENDATION

That Members approve the funding required to enable this project 
to be delivered, subject to planning permission being granted.

1 Background

1.1 Community interest has been expressed, primarily from the D Day 
Fellowship, to establish a war memorial at Stokes Bay 
commemorating the area‘s prominent role in World War 2.

1.2

1.3

2

2.1

Officers undertook a consultation during February and March 2020 
with the committees of the D Day Fellowship, Gosport Society, 
Friends of Stoke Bay and the Anglesey Conservation Group. The 
groups were supportive of the principle of a memorial and 
contemplative space in Stokes Bay.

The Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) Delivery Plan includes a new 
Conservation Area designation for Stokes Bay to protect the rich 
military legacy of the area. Proposals for a Conservation Area will 
be brought forward separately but the establishment of a 
commemorative space relating to the areas role in World War 2 is 
seen as complementary to the rich military heritage of the area and 
the aims of the HAZ.

Discussion

Historic England undertook a full research project in the area to 
ascertain the historic assets from Fort Monckton to Browndown. The 
results are published on their website (Link: 
https://research.historicengland.org.uk/Report.aspx?i=16259). This 
study highlights numerous features relating to the construction of 
the Mulberry Harbours, the areas links with the training of crews for 
the floating tanks, training undertaken on Browndown, and the 

Agenda Item 7

https://research.historicengland.org.uk/Report.aspx?i=16259


2.2

2.3

embarkation of significant numbers of military personnel around D-
Day (most famously the Canadian troops). 

During the initial consultation on 27th February, 2nd March and 17th 
March the idea of consolidating the existing memorials in Stokes 
Bay into one contemplative space was raised and will form an 
important part of the proposals. Linking the new memorial space 
with existing memorials will help to highlight and reinforce the 
significance of the area.

Further consultation will be held with a wider diversity of groups 
once concept designs have been confirmed and the process moves 
onto detailed design.  This is expect in September or October.
 

2.4

2.5

The candidate area is shown on the plan which appears as Appendix 
A.  This has been carefully selected, in discussion with local interest 
groups, to provide an open space where minimal archaeology will be 
disturbed and central to the core activity relating to the D-Day events. 
It is also considered important to locate the site adjacent to the 
promenade to ensure its prominence and ease of access for any 
ceremonial occasions. 

Subject to approval, the intention would be to begin construction of 
the memorial this calendar year with completion in 2021.  COVID-19 
has created some slippage due to not being able to have on site or 
office based meetings.

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 The HAZ delivery plan currently includes £30,000 to develop the 
project design, and secure planning permission, with the assistance 
of Hampshire County Council through a Service Level Agreement. 
To ensure the delivery of the project an additional sum of £50,000 
will be needed to deliver a built monument and commemorative 
space. This funding can be met from the current capital programme 
underspend.

3.2

3.3

Planning: Permission will be applied for separately and delivery of 
this project is also subject to the approval and agreement of the 
Heritage Action Zone Partnership and will be presented a future 
Regulatory Board meeting, subject to confirmation of the funding.

With this type of project there is always the risk of unknown costs 
related to ground conditions. We are advised that there ought to be 
no issues of concern in the area identified and will be carrying our 
further soil checks in the next few weeks.



4 Conclusion

4.1 That Members support the proposed War Memorial in Stokes Bay 
and the additional funding required as outline in this report.

Financial Services 
comments:

A further £50,000 will be added to HAZ budget 
from the Capital Programme for FY 2021/22 to 
enable this project.  Funding will be reviewed as 
part of the broader Budget setting process to come 
to Council in February 2021 but in the first instance 
will be sourced from capital underspends from 
2019/20

Legal Services 
comments:

Contained within the report.

Equality and Diversity Further direct consultation required as part of the 
forward programme in autumn 2020.

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:
Corporate Plan:
Risk Assessment: See section 3

Background papers: Heritage Action Zone Delivery Plan

Appendices Appendix A: Proposed Boundary 

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Michelle Lees (Gosport Heritage Action Zone 
Programme Manager)



This page is intentionally left blank



MHW

0            5           10                       20                        30 metres

N

Stokes Bay Sailing Club

Beach

Shelter

Site Location Plan   Stokes Bay war memorial   D R A F T

Scale 1:500 @ A3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
Date of meeting: 28 JULY 2020
Title: EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT IT EQUIPMENT/HOUSING 

PODS
Author: BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER
Status: FOR DECISION 

Purpose

Due to the Covid-19 global pandemic the Government circulated an emergency 
procurement note, “Procurement Policy Note – Responding to COVID-19 Information 
Note PPN 01/20” (“PPN”) drawing attention to the powers available to local authorities 
in entering into contracts and procurement during an emergency.

The Council has the ability to make an exemption to its usual Contract Procedure 
Rules in accordance with paragraph 3.3 to enable procurement in an emergency 
situation by approval of the Chief Executive, Borough Treasurer and the Borough 
Solicitor.

The Chief Executive has delegated his powers set out in the Constitution to the 
Assistant to the Chief Executive. As a result the Assistant to the Chief Executive is 
also empowered to provide approval in this situation. 

Recommendation:

That the Board:

i) Notes the procurements made in relation to IT equipment for Council 
staff to enable critical council services to remain operational through 
remote working and the provision of Housing accommodation for 
rough sleepers and the homeless at Walpole Park

ii) Approves the procurement of the Housing accommodation at Walpole 
Park together with associated services, as set out in the report.

1.0 Background

1.1 The Council has Contract Procedure Rules (“CPR”) that set out how it is to 
procure goods and services. At paragraph 3.3 of the CPR it states that:

“Where an exemption is necessary because of an unforeseeable emergency 
(below the EU Threshold) involving immediate risk to persons, property or 
serious disruption to Council services, the Chief Executive,  Borough 
Treasurer and the Borough Solicitor  may approve the exemption but they 
must prepare a report for the next appropriate Board to support the action 
taken”.

Agenda Item 8



1.2 In early March 2020 the Government circulated an emergency procurement 
note, “Procurement Policy Note – Responding to COVID-19 Information Note 
PPN 01/20” (“PPN”) drawing attention to the powers available to local 
authorities in entering into contracts and procurement during an emergency. 
These powers appear in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (“PCN”). The 
EU Threshold is £189,330.

1.3 Procurement of these two items was taken using the emergency power set 
out in the Contract Procedure Rules. 

1.4 The procurement of the Housing accommodation has been particularly fluid 
with significant uncertainty relating to the length of any provision required, 
emerging government policy and future longer term arrangements.  
Consequently, the costs of the procurement have been increasing on a 
monthly basis as a result of continued hire of the pods and associated 
services. Whilst the 'Next Steps' exit arrangements are developed, approval 
of the Board is required to extend the hire of the Housing accommodation 
beyond the EU Threshold, as continued provision of the accommodation will 
be required whilst alternatives and the long term position of the Council on 
this issue is determined.

2.0 IT equipment

2.1 In mid-March as the Council started preparations for the Covid-19 pandemic 
Officers began to consider how to enable staff to work from home utilising 
existing and new equipment. Subsequently, Government guidance in relation 
to working practices during the pandemic was updated on 23 March 2020 
with the effect that people should work from home unless it was absolutely 
necessary for them to attend their place of work. IT were engaged to source 
additional equipment to enable this to take place with IT equipment being 
distributed on a phased basis.

2.2 By Friday 3 April 2020 the Emergency Covid-19 Team had co-ordinated the 
rollout of IT equipment with a plan for keeping mission critical services 
running. This plan set out arrangements to enable as many members of staff 
as possible to work from home. 

2.3 The Head of IT consulted with the Emergency Covid-19 Team at the Council 
to determine the number of additional laptops required, the running and 
estimated final total cost, and who these would be distributed to. The 
Assistant to the Chief Executive gave approval to the procurement of the 
equipment, and the Head of Finance updated the Borough Treasurer in 
separate exchanges of emails as the situation developed. 

2.4 The total procurement as of 1 June was for equipment to a value of 
£101,120.00 from one supplier (Vokhus) and a further £14,309.00 from 
another (Sophos) giving a combined total of £115,429.00.



2.5 This procurement was below the EU threshold and assessed to be 
appropriate for a direct award due to extreme urgency (PCR regulation 
32(2)(c)). 

3.0 Housing Pods, Walpole Park

3.1 Prior to the lockdown, officers assessed the suitability of accommodation in 
council-owned hostels at Agnew House and Barclay House and the impact 
COVID-19 would have in these setting where there are shared facilities. The 
initial response was to ensure that the hostel housing provision remained 
open as a critical and essential service and all high risk individuals that fell 
into the shielded category were moved out into alternative self-contained 
accommodation. Steps were taken to provide means of self-isolation for all 
other individuals where possible, but it became apparent that additional 
accommodation would be required.

3.2 On 26 March 2020, in response to the public health emergency, and the 
Government’s ‘Everyone in’ directive to find safe and secure accommodation 
for anyone presenting as homeless, the priority for all local authorities was 
to ensure that rough sleepers across the country had an offer of 
accommodation and a place they could self-isolate if required. This directive 
included all non-priority homeless.

3.3 The Council needed to respond to this directive and find a solution within a 
matter of days and at a time when the normal supply chain of temporary 
accommodation, such as hotels and bed and breakfast accommodation, was 
unavailable. The Head of Housing was able to source 30 Bunkabins quickly, 
at a time when other Local Authorities were doing exactly the same.  

3.4 Since the ‘Everyone in’ directive, the Housing Service has seen a total of 78 
approaches for housing under COVID-19. Of these, 21 have been assisted 
into more settled accommodation, either in the Private Rented Sector (PRS) 
or via supported housing pathways. The remainder have been 
accommodated in the cabins, limited available bed and breakfast 
accommodation, and the Council’s own hostels. A small number declined 
assistance or were unable to be accommodated as they were deemed to be 
too high risk. 

3.5 In addition to the COVID-19 placements, a further 69 households have been 
accommodated where the Council had a homeless duty in accordance with 
the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. All those that approach the Housing 
Service as homeless are assessed and the data for those accommodated 
under COVID-19 shows that:
• 26% will require supported housing with intensive support
• 29% will require supported housing or PRS accommodation with 
floating support
• 45% will be able to access PRS with assistance such as rent deposit, 
bond guarantee



3.6 A specialist taskforce, headed by Dame Louise Casey, has been created to 
lead the next phase of the government’s support for rough sleepers during 
the pandemic and build on the work undertaken so far. The taskforce aims 
to ensure that rough sleepers in emergency accommodation continue to 
receive the physical and mental health support they need to continue to self-
isolate from the virus, and can move into long-term, safe accommodation 
once the immediate crisis is over with as few as possible returning to life on 
the streets.

3.7 The Next Steps Accommodation Programme has recently been launched 
and makes available funding to support local authorities. This programme 
makes available the financial resources to support local authorities to ensure 
that as few individuals as possible return to the streets following time spent 
in emergency accommodation as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. This 
includes separate funds for: 

(1) shorter-term and interim accommodation, reconnections and immediate 
support into sustainable move-on options such as the private rented sector 
to continue to support this work and sustain interim accommodation options 
until vital longer term move-on options can be put in place; and 

(2) longer-term move on accommodation, including capital for acquisitions, 
refurbishments and new build, and an attached long-term revenue stream to 
ensure people are supported in their new tenancies. 

3.8 The Head of Housing consulted with the Emergency Covid-19 Team at the 
Council to determine the number of housing pods that were required and the 
costs involved. The Assistant to the Chief Executive gave approval, and the 
Head of Finance updated the Borough Treasurer in exchanges of emails as 
the situation developed.

3.9 The total procurement as of 10 July was £79,399.00 in relation to the supplier 
of the pods (Bunkabin) and a further £106,739 in relation to support services 
to be supplied to the pods (Mobile Mini UK Limited (Southampton)).There 
has also been additional costs of £12,020 for repairs (Kier) giving a combined 
running total of £198,158. The Head of Housing intends to bid for additional 
revenue funding to support the costs of the cabins through to January 2021 
(from the national £105m fund)  as well as other initiatives to facilitate longer 
term plans (from the national £161m fund).  The overall cost to the Council 
will also be offset by contributions via rental charges to occupants of the pods 
at the Local Housing Allowance rate and paid for through Universal Credit.  
This income currently stands at £41,000. 

3.10 Whilst the initial procurement of the housing accommodation was below the 
EU Threshold and assessed to be appropriate as a direct award due to 
extreme urgency (PCR regulation 32(2)(c)), with the running costs of the 
housing accommodation having increased above the PCN threshold, the 
Board’s approval is sought.  This will enable the continued hire of the 
accommodation until the 'Next Steps' strategy can be implemented.



4.0 Future provision of housing accommodation

4.1 Consideration has been given to moving occupants out of the emergency 
temporary accommodation into more settled, long term accommodation with 
support. This is not straightforward for the following reasons:

• Consideration needs to be given to the complex situation of non-priority 
homelessness, taking into account and balancing the requirements of 
those individuals that have been identified as having a priority housing 
need

  
• The cohort will require varying levels of support to sustain future 

accommodation. Any new support contracts or existing contracts 
subject to a material change will need to procured in line with the 
Contract Procedure Rules

• Whilst the Next Steps Accommodation Programme has been 
announced, a successful bid and funding levels cannot be guaranteed 
either in the short or long term

• Limited availability of suitable move-on accommodation, particularly for 
those with intensive and medium support needs

• The temporary suspension of evictions is due to be lifted 23 August 2020 
and it is anticipated this will lead to an increase in number of homeless 
approaches, placing additional demand on already limited housing 
options. The service is seeing increased numbers of relationship 
breakdowns and this will continue to add further pressure

• Usual sources of temporary accommodation in hotels and bed and 
breakfast accommodation are still unavailable and conversations with 
local hotel chains indicate these will not be available for the foreseeable 
future

• MHCLG has advised that the winter bed provision in the hostel at 101 
Gosport Road, Fareham and provided by local faith groups will not be 
available for rough sleepers this year  due to the shared sleeping 
arrangements and the high risk of infection.

4.2 A number of long term accommodation solutions, appearing in the following 
paragraphs are being considered and evaluated by the Head of Housing. To 
assist in securing realistic housing options, an Accommodation Procurement 
Officer has been appointed for a fixed term until September 2021 following a 
successful Rough Sleeper Initiative joint bid with Fareham Borough Council.

4.3 Private Rented Sector (“PRS”) accommodation: Although there are a 
number of PRS properties in the Borough, it is unknown how many would be 
suitable or considered for single homeless households. Some landlords and 
letting agents have already expressed that they will only consider homeless 
families as rough sleepers are perceived to be a high risk. The 



Accommodation and Procurement Officer will be tasked with bringing empty 
properties back into use, including MOD properties where possible.

Affordability of PRS for single homeless households remains a challenge. 
Despite the rise in Local Housing Allowance rates in April 2020, it is still well 
below the median rent in the private sector. This is in addition to the 
limitations for the under 35’s who are only entitled to a Single Room Rate 
meaning they are only able to access a room in shared accommodation. A 
temporary increase to LHA rates was brought in by the government to ease 
homelessness pressures brought on by the pandemic, but it is unknown how 
long this measure will remain in place.

4.4 Private leasing schemes: Secure a portfolio of properties with a long lease 
for Council to let to homeless at LHA rates. Support will be provided using 
Flexible Homeless Support Grant funding. Consideration will also be given 
to alternative models whereby properties, including an HMO, can be 
purchased by charities or faith groups and leased to the Council with an 
agreed support package.

4.5 Housing First model: Work with Private Registered Providers to identify 
suitable properties in their stock to use as Housing First accommodation for 
single homeless with intensive support needs funded through the Flexible 
Homelessness Support Grant. This will only be available to a limited number 
of individuals due to the high support costs.

4.6 Repurpose existing stock: Identify council owned properties that could be 
repurposed to provide additional housing i.e. convert redundant drying rooms 
in 4 x blocks into one bed, studio flats. 

4.7 Having all the rough sleepers in one place has not been without its 
challenges, but it has been a real opportunity to help some of the most 
vulnerable in our society and work with them in a settled environment rather 
than on the streets. Traditionally, many night shelters are run on a night by 
night basis and the government does not want us to return to this model. The 
Council has a chance to offer rough sleepers more stability through a range 
of housing initiatives so we can continue to work together with health 
professionals to help address their physical and mental health needs and 
support the government’s long term strategy to end rough sleeping by 2024.

5.0 Risk assessment

5.1 Procurement of these items was required as part of the emergency response 
to the Covid-19 pandemic. Further approval is required to continue the hire 
of the emergency housing accommodation otherwise alternative means of 
accommodation will need to be sought on an emergency basis. The Council 
has received, and continues to receive Government funding to mitigate the 
costs incurred in response to the pandemic. The Council has so far received 
two tranches of funding amounting to  £855,587 from Government in non-
ring fenced government grants and last week it was announced that the 
Council would receive a further £144,232, taking total funding to £1,029,819.



6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The report sets out the reasons why the items were procured and are being 
reported. The Board is requested to approve the recommendation to enable 
to the continued provision of housing accommodation for the homeless.

Financial Services comments: Contained within the report
Legal Services comments: Contained within the report
Crime and Disorder:
Equality and Diversity:
Corporate Plan:
Risk Assessment: See paragraph 4 in body of report 
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:
Report author/ Lead Officer: Paul Grant, Borough Solicitor & Monitoring 

Officer



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                      Page 1 of 3

Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board
Date of meeting: 28th July 2020
Title: CCTV MONITORING CONTRACT 

EXTENSION 
Author: HEAD OF CORPORATE POLICY AND 

COMMUNITY SAFETY

Status: For Decision 

PURPOSE

To seek Board approval to utilise the optional extension provision in the   
CCTV Monitoring Contract for the period of one year.

RECOMMENDATION

The Board is recommended to:

i. agree a one year contract extension with Enigma Security Solutions 
Ltd.

ii. approve the Borough Solicitor entering into a legal agreement with 
Fareham Borough Council to meet its costs of the contract extension.

1 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Fareham and Gosport CCTV Partnership was established in 1997 
by Fareham Borough Council and Gosport Borough Council to jointly 
manage and operate a network of approximately 93 CCTV cameras 
via a single Control Room based in Gosport.  

1.2 Gosport Borough Council procures the monitoring contract on behalf of 
the Fareham and Gosport CCTV Partnership and the costs are then 
apportioned between the Councils based on the number of cameras 
which is approximately 50:50. 

2 REPORT

2.1 An extensive procurement process was carried out in 2015 resulting in 
award of the monitoring contract from a period of five years with an 
optional extension period of up to two years.  

2.2 Eleven tenders were evaluation on a price and service quality ratio of 
60% and 40% and the company with the highest score was appointed: 
Enigma Security Solutions Ltd.

Agenda Item 9



                                                      Page 2 of 3

2.3 During the last five years contact performance has been impeccable 
with 100% score on all key performance indicators.  

2. 4 The Fareham and Gosport Partnership Board has considered its 
options for contact renewal and the most appropriate option is to 
extend the contract for a period of twelve months. This will allow 
operational review outcomes to be finalised and inform procurement of 
the monitoring service as appropriate.

2.5 If the Board is minded to approve the recommendation then the 
monitoring contract would be extended from 29th October 2020 to 28th 
October 2021. 

3      FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The Council has made provision in its Revenue Budget for the ongoing 
contract costs of £120k with approximately half of this sum being paid 
for by Fareham Borough Council. 

4 RISK ASSESSMENT

4.1 This approach ensures continued service provision (control room 
monitoring) and allows the opportunity for future need to be reflected in 
the future procurement process. In the interim amendment provisions 
in the current contract will be utilised to ensure efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

5       NEXT STEPS

5.1    Once the Board has approved this extension the necessary legal 
agreements will be made and the Borough Solicitor will enter into 
negotiations and complete the necessary legal agreement.

Financial Implications Set out in Section 3 of the report

Legal Implications The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires the 
Council to work together with other statutory 
authorities to formulate and implement 
strategies for the reduction of crime and 
disorder in its area. CCTV monitoring directly 
supports this strategy and improves 
community safety. 



                                                      Page 3 of 3

Corporate Plan The contract extensive helps to ensure the 
council continues to provide effective 
services.
 

Risk Assessment As outlined in the report.

Background papers

Climate Change N/A
Appendices/Enclosures None 

Report author/Lead 
Officer 

Julie Petty

 



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the board held on 16 March 2020 and 10 June 2020
	Minutes
	Minutes , 10/06/2020 Policy and Organisation Board

	6 External Audit 2019-20 Audit Plan Update
	External Audit 2019-20 Audit Plan Update

	7 Proposed War Memorial at Stokes Bay
	War Memorial - Site Location
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	8 EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT IT EQUIPMENT/HOUSING PODS
	9 Contract Extension

